KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

FINANCIAL SECTION

1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

2

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

16

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION

18

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

19

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION — COMPONENT UNIT

21

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES — COMPONENT UNIT

22

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

55

STATE UNIVERSITIES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF ILLINOIS

56

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
OPEB LIABILITY – COMMUNITY COLLEGE HEALTH INSURANCE
SECURITY FUND

57

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS – COMMUNITY COLLEGE
HEALTH INSURANCE SECURITY FUND

58

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – COMMUNITY
COLLEGE HEALTH INSURANCE SECURITY FUND

59

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

60

ASSESSED VALUATIONS AND TAXES LEVIED — GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TYPES

61

SUMMARY OF TAXES RECEIVABLE AND TAX COLLECTIONS —
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

62

SCHEDULE OF DEBT MATURITIES

63

SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

64

CURRENT INSURANCE COVERAGE (UNAUDITED)

65

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

74

i

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 1 — ALL FUNDS SUMMARY

75

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 2 — SUMMARY OF CAPITAL
ASSETS AND FIXED DEBT

76

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 3 — OPERATING PURPOSES
FUNDS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

77

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 4 — RESTRICTED PURPOSES
FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

79

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 5 — CURRENT FUNDS —
EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY

81

RECONCILIATION OF THE UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 1 TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

83

ILLINOIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD STATE GRANTS SECTION

84

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE ADULT EDUCATION AND
FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM

85

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

87

ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM —
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

88

ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM —
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION

89

NOTES TO ICCB STATE GRANT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

90

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE — ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY
LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM

91

DOCUMENTATION OF RESIDENCY VERIFICATION STEPS (UNAUDITED)

92

ANNUAL FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE SECTION

96

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

97

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

99

ii

FINANCIAL SECTION

(1)

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Centralia, Illinois
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the District), as of
and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, Kaskaskia College
Foundation, which represents 100% of the assets, net position, and revenue of the component unit.
Those statements were audited by another auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit, is
based solely on the report of the other auditor. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of
the District’s component unit were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details.

(2)

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities, and the discretely presented component unit, of Kaskaskia Community College District #501
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 15, defined benefit pension plan
information on page 56, the schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability on
page 57 and the schedule of the District’s contributions on page 58 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary financial information on pages 61
through 64, the current insurance coverage on page 65, the uniform financial statements on pages 74
through 83, and the documentation of residency verification steps on pages 92 through 95, are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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The supplementary financial information, and the uniform financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.
The current insurance coverage and the documentation of residency verification steps have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 17, 2021, on our consideration of Kaskaskia Community College District #501’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Kaskaskia Community
College District #501’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Kaskaskia Community College District #501’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Peoria, Illinois
November 17, 2021
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
This section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Kaskaskia Community College District
#501 (College) presents management’s discussion and analysis of the financial activity during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019. Since this management’s discussion and analysis is designed
to focus on current activities, resulting change, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with
the College’s audited financial statements and notes to the financial statements. Responsibility for the
completeness and fairness of this information rests with the College.
Using This Annual Report
These financial statements focus on the College as a whole and are designed to emulate corporate
presentation models whereby all College activities are consolidated into one total. The focus of the
Statements of Net Position is to reflect the College’s financial position at a certain date. This statement
combines and consolidates current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets
and long-term debt. Net position is one indicator of the current financial condition of the College, while the
change in net position is another indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or
deteriorated during the year.
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position summarize revenues and costs of
College activities. It requires the classification of revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating.
The College’s operational loss is supported substantially by property taxes and state and federal grants.
Non-operating activity also includes interest expense on capital projects and working cash bonds. This
approach is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the costs of providing services and
facilities to students and the public. The Uniform Financial Statements found on pages 74 through 82
present revenues and expenditures by fund. The reconciliation that follows these uniform financial
statements on page 83 outlines the differences between the statements presented by fund and the general
purpose financial statements.
The Statements of Cash Flows present the inflow and outflow of cash collected and disbursed by the
College. It separates the sources and uses of funds by the major categories of operating, noncapital
financing, capital financing, and investing activities. This statement emphasizes the College’s dependence
on federal, state, and local sources by separating them from the operating cash flows.
Financial Highlights
The College had a net position at the beginning of the fiscal year 2021 totaling $41,901,748. The increase
in net position of $2,356,917 brought the total net position at the end of fiscal year 2021 to $44,258,665.
Fiscal year 2020 also saw an increase in net position of $2,800,236.
A notable decline in net position occurred in fiscal year 2018 due to the reporting of a large, non-exchange
liability required by Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The College recognized a
liability resulting from its participation in a comprehensive healthcare insurance plan (CIP) available to
retirees of Illinois community colleges and their covered dependents. This is referred to as other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) adjustment. Through prudent spending, the College recovered part of
that decline in fiscal years 2019, 2020, & 2021, adding a combined $8.9 million to net position.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole

Net Position
As of June 30
(In Millions)

2021

2020

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2021
vs 2020

Current Assets
Capital Assets

40.1

39.0

1.1

53.6

54.1

Total Assets

93.7

93.1

1.2

0.7

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Liabilities

Percent
Change
FY 2021
vs 2020

2019

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2020
vs 2019

Percent
Change
FY 2020
vs 2019

2.9%

39.1

(0.1)

-0.4%

(0.5)

-0.9%

55.0

(0.9)

-1.7%

0.6

0.6%

94.1

(1.1)

-1.2%

0.5

69.7%

0.5

0.2

43.5%

4.8

4.8

0.0

-0.3%

6.1

(1.3)

-21.6%

Noncurrent Liabilities

31.8

33.6

(1.8)

-5.5%

34.9

(1.3)

-3.7%

Total Liabilities

36.6

38.4

-1.8

-4.7%

41.0

(2.6)

-6.3%

Deferred Inflows of Resources

14.1

13.4

0.7

5.2%

14.4

(1.0)

-6.8%

34.1
14.4
(4.3)
44.2

32.8
14.7
(5.6)
41.9

1.3
(0.3)
1.3
2.3

4.0%
-2.2%
-23.0%
5.5%

31.1
14.9
(6.9)
39.1

1.7
(0.2)
1.3
2.8

5.4%
-1.4%
-19.3%
7.2%

Net Position
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The Net Position schedule above is prepared from the College’s Statements of Net Position, which are
presented on a full accrual basis of accounting. This statement presents the assets, liabilities and net position
of the College at the end of the fiscal year. The purpose of this statement is to provide a snapshot of the
financial condition of the College. Total net position is the difference between total assets and total
liabilities.
Total assets at June 30, 2021 are $93.7 million, an increase of $600,000 from June 30, 2020. This increase
in total assets is primarily due to the improved cash position from additional federal grants awarded in fiscal
2021. Current assets total $40.1 million, which are comprised of cash and cash equivalents (65%), property
taxes receivable (26%), and other assets (9%).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Total assets at June 30, 2020 are $93.1 million, a decrease of $1,100,000 from June 30, 2019. This decrease
in total assets is primarily due to a decrease in property taxes receivable. This decline is due to the payoff
of a working cash bond, which reduces the subsequent year’s property tax levy. Current assets total $39.0
and $39.1 million for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. The composition of current assets is similar
to fiscal year 2021.
Total liabilities are $36.6 million, of which 13% is current and 87% is non-current. Total liabilities are
$38.4 and $41.0 million, respectively, as of June 30 2020 and 2019. The declines each year are largely due
to the payment of bond installment obligations.

Capital Assets, Net
As of June 30
(In Millions)

2021

2020

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2021
vs 2020

Percent
Change
FY 2021
vs 2020

2019

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2020
vs 2019

Percent
Change
FY 2020
vs 2019

Capital Assets
Land
Land Improvements
Building & Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Assets under Capital Lease
Construction in Progress
Total

1.6
3.6
70.8
6.3
3.8
0.4
0.9
87.5

1.6
3.6
69.8
5.9
3.6
0.4
0.7
85.7

0.0
0.0
1.0
0.4
0.2
0.0
0.2
1.8

0.0%
0.0%
1.4%
7.0%
5.0%
0.0%
33.4%
2.1%

1.6
3.6
68.5
5.7
3.6
0.3
1.3
84.6

0.0
0.0
1.3
0.2
0.0
0.1
-0.6
1.1

2.8%
-1.2%
1.9%
3.7%
3.3%
44.0%
-45.5%
1.4%

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

33.9
53.6

31.6
54.1

2.3
-0.5

7.1%
-0.8%

29.6
55.0

2.0
-1.0

6.8%
-1.5%

College policy requires that assets costing $5,000 or greater are capitalized and depreciated. The College
continues to focus on the maintenance and improvement of facilities which has led to an increase in the
Buildings & Improvements category. The approval of the Master Facility Improvement Plan in March of
2020 continues to guide capital spending, which are primarily building improvements. Higher Education
Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) awards have allowed the College to purchase equipment, specifically
in technology to improve remote learning and promote social distancing. Additional information regarding
Capital Assets can be found in Note 4 of the Financial Statements.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Noncurrent Liabilities
As of June 30
(in millions)

Accrued Compensated Absences
Capital Lease Obligation
Bonds Payable
Other Postemployement Benefit Liability
TOTAL

2021

2020

0.7
0.1
17.3
13.6
31.8

0.7
0.1
19.3
13.5
33.6

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2021
vs 2020
0.0
(0.0)
(2.0)
0.2
(1.8)

Percent
Change
FY 2021
vs 2020
2.8%
0.0%
-10.2%
1.1%
-5.5%

2019
0.6
0.0
21.1
13.2
34.9

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2020
vs 2019
0.1
0.1
(1.8)
0.3
(1.3)

Percent
Change
FY 2020
vs 2019
15.1%
0.0%
-8.6%
2.2%
-3.7%

Bond and lease payment schedules appear in Note 5 of the Financial Statements. Note 7 explains the Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Liability in detail. The state of Illinois has significantly underfunded
post-retirement obligations, which has resulted in “pay as you go” funding. Employees and the College
each contribute .5% of eligible salaries to the CIP, as required by the State. The OPEB liability represents
the College’s share of the CIP obligations estimated for Kaskaskia College retirees and dependents. This
amount is approximately one-half of actuarially determined values. The other half of the liability is the
responsibility of the state of Illinois. The College participates in post-retirement plans, but decisions
regarding the plans are made at the state level.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021

Operating Results
For the Years Ended June 30
(In Millions)
Increase Percent
(Decrease) Change
FY 2021 FY 2021
vs 2020 vs 2020

2021

2020

5.3
1.1
6.4

5.7
1.4
7.2

(0.4)
(0.3)
(0.8)

-7.6%
-22.2%
-10.5%

5.4
1.6
7.0

0.3
(0.2)
0.1

6.3%
-11.7%
1.4%

Less Operating Expenses
Net Operating Loss

41.4
-35.0

41.1
-34.0

0.3
(1.0)

0.6%
3.0%

38.2
-31.2

3.0
(2.8)

7.7%
8.9%

Nonoperating Revenue
State Grants and Contracts
Federal Grants and Contracts
Property Taxes
Other Income (Expense)
Total

19.9
6.9
10.1
0.2
37.1

19.5
5.8
11.3
0.2
36.7

0.4
1.1
(1.2)
0.0
0.3

1.9%
19.3%
-10.3%
11.5%
0.9%

18.1
5.1
11.4
0.3
34.9

1.4
0.7
(0.1)
(0.1)
1.8

7.8%
13.4%
-1.2%
-46.8%
5.2%

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.0

0.1

2.3
41.9
44.2

2.9
39.1
41.9

(0.6)
2.8
2.2

3.7
35.4
39.1

(0.8)
4.8
2.9

Operating Revenue
Tuition and Fees
Auxiliary
Total

Capital Gifts
Increase in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

-19.4%
7.2%
5.4%

2019

Increase Percent
(Decrease) Change
FY 2020 FY 2020
vs 2019 vs 2019

-22.9%
13.6%
7.3%

The schedule above is prepared from the College’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position. Operating revenue includes activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such
as student tuition and fees (net of scholarship discounts and allowances) and sales of goods and services of
auxiliary enterprises. Non-operating revenue includes activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as local property taxes, federal and state appropriations, most grants, and gifts
and contributions.
The pandemic continued to disrupt face to face learning during fiscal 2021, which negatively impacted
enrollment and retention contributing to the tuition and fees decline. Also, the reduced headcount on
campus resulted in a decline in auxiliary revenue. Non-operating revenue increased because of additional
federal grants, primarily HEERF funding, offset by a decline in property tax revenue. The property tax
levy decreased because the working cash bond was paid off in the previous year.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Other noteworthy variances in fiscal year 2021 include state grants and contracts, which increased by
$400,000, and investment revenue declined $300,000. The state grant increase is primarily due to an
increase in the State University Retirement System contribution made on-behalf of the College. Investment
income declined due to the low interest rate environment.
State grants and contracts include on-behalf payments of $11.1, $10.1, and $8.5 million for 2021, 2020, and
2019, respectively. These payments reflect the College’s portion of the State Universities Retirement
System (SURS) pension contributions that are an obligation of the State of Illinois. The State of Illinois
makes these payments on the College’s behalf, and the College records revenue and corresponding benefit
expense for the amount of these payments. The state grants line also reflects the CIP on-behalf contribution
explained previously. The revenues and expenses recorded for these payments do not pass through the
College; and the College doesn’t spend any actual dollars. These on-behalf payments occur annually and
amounts may fluctuate significantly.
While the College experienced unique struggles with COVID-19 in fiscal year 2020, revenue increased
over the prior year. State (explained in preceding paragraph) and federal grant and contract revenue was
the primary contributor to the increase. Federal funding increased primarily due to the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act.
Below and on the following page is a graphic illustration of Total Revenues by Source for fiscal years
2021, 2020 and 2019.

Total Revenues by Source Year Ended June 30, 2021
Capital Gifts/Other
Income (Expense)
0%

Tuition and fees

Tuition and fees Auxiliary
3%
12%

Auxiliary
State Grants and Contracts

Property Taxes
23%

Federal Grants and
Contracts
16%

On‐behalf SURS and CIP
State Grants and
Contracts
20%

Federal Grants and
Contracts
Property Taxes

On‐behalf SURS and
CIP
26%

Capital Gifts/Other Income
(Expense)
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Operating expenses provide education and operational support to the College. Any expense not meeting
this definition is non-operating. The only non-operating expense the College has is interest. The College’s
operating expenses are largely funded by non-operating revenue.

Operating Expenses
For the Years Ended June 30
(In Millions)

2021

Increase
Percent
(Decrease) Change
FY 2021 FY 2021
2020 vs 2020
vs 2020

Operating Expense by Function
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Public Service
Auxiliary
Operations & Maintenance
Instutitional Support
Financial Aid & Scholarships
Depreciation
Total

16.1
3.6
2.8
0.0
2.8
3.6
6.9
3.3
2.3
41.4

16.4
3.8
2.6
0.1
2.7
3.9
6.5
2.9
2.3
41.2

(0.3)
(0.2)
0.2
(0.1)
0.1
(0.3)
0.4
0.4
0.0
0.3

-2.0%
-5.3%
7.6%
-73.4%
4.9%
-8.4%
6.7%
15.5%
0.0%
0.7%

15.5
3.1
2.6
0.1
2.8
4.2
5.4
2.2
2.3
38.2

0.9
0.7
0.0
0.0
(0.1)
(0.3)
1.1
0.7
0.0
3.0

5.9%
22.7%
0.1%
12.7%
-4.7%
-6.5%
18.7%
30.1%
1.5%
7.7%

Operating Expenses by Object
Salaries
Benefits
Supplies & Other Services
Utilities
Travel
Financial Aid & Scholarships
Depreciation
Other
Total

15.0
14.9
4.2
0.9
0.1
3.3
2.3
0.7
41.4

14.9
14.8
3.9
0.9
0.2
2.9
2.3
1.2
41.2

0.1
0.1
0.2
0.0
(0.1)
0.4
(0.0)
(0.4)
0.3

0.6%
0.5%
5.4%
1.5%
-33.5%
13.3%
-0.2%
-34.8%
0.7%

14.0
13.6
3.8
0.9
0.3
2.2
2.3
1.1
38.2

0.9
1.2
0.1
(0.0)
(0.1)
0.7
0.0
0.1
3.0

6.6%
9.0%
3.6%
-3.3%
-19.5%
33.1%
1.5%
1.9%
7.7%

2019

Increase
(Decrease)
FY 2020
vs 2019

Percent
Change
FY 2020
vs 2019

Operating expenses for fiscal year 2021 increased $300,000 (.7%) from fiscal year 2020. Financial aid
and scholarships increased approximately $400,000 due to direct aid to students that passed through the
College with HEERF funds. Supplies and other services increased $200,000 due to purchases made with
HEERF funds. These funds were used to improve distance learning and provide for appropriate social
distancing and other mitigation efforts. Many conferences were attended virtually or canceled, which
caused the $100,000 (33.5%) decrease in travel. Other expenses decreased by $400,000 (34.8%) which
were miscellaneous items that did not repeat this year. While small dollars, public service decreased by
$100,000 (73.4%) due to fewer Business and Industry classes because of COVID-19 protocols.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Operating expenses for fiscal year 2020 increased $3 million (7.7%) from fiscal year 2019. This increase
is primarily due to additional pension contributions made on-behalf of the College resulting in a $1.2
million increase in benefits. Financial aid and scholarships increased approximately $700,000 due to
direct aid to students that passed through the College via the CARES Act. Salaries also increased due to
annual compensation increases and additional positions. The College made staffing adjustments and
created an armed police presence to enhance security for students, staff, and visitors. The 19.5%
($100,000) decrease in travel represents the cancellation of events due to COVID-19.
The following is a graphic illustration of Operating Expenses by Function for Fiscal Year 2021, 2020, and
2019:
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021
Following is a graphic illustration of Operating Expenses by Object for Fiscal Year 2021, 2020 and 2019:

Facts, Decisions or Conditions Significantly Affecting Financial Position
The COVID-19 pandemic continued to impact the world in 2021. Despite this disruption, the financial
position of the College remains stable. The College experienced continued financial improvement in fiscal
year 2021 as evidenced by the improvement in net financial position. The College continues to maneuver
through the disruption by focusing its efforts on aligning resources and spending with the strategic plan and
ancillary plans. The ancillary plans address facility improvements, information technology, strategic
enrollment management, and marketing. These plans guide resource allocations in order to focus on the
institutional goals of providing a quality educational experience, effectively managing enrollment and
resources, maximizing regional integration, and engaging the community.
The notes to the financial statements include additional details and further explanations of data presented
in the financial statements. The notes are an integral part of the financial statements and should be included
as part of any review or analysis.
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Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 – June 30, 2021

Contacting Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our stakeholders with a general overview of Kaskaskia
Community College District’s finances, as well as display accountability and transparency for funds
received and spent. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Judy
Hemker, Vice-President of Administrative Services and CFO, 27210 College Road, Centralia, IL 62801,
telephone (618) 545-3105.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets Held in Trust
Accounts Receivable:
Student Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts of $189,124 in 2021 and 2020
Government Receivable
Other Receivables
Property Taxes Receivable
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Grant-Related Pension Contributions
Other Post Employment Benefits
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2021

2020

$ 26,401,966
250,935

$ 25,259,657
251,295

691,331
1,873,965
7,913
10,380,966
22,607
468,457
40,098,140

639,687
1,751,110
45,911
10,086,022
466,205
455,510
38,955,397

2,590,088
51,021,818
53,611,906

2,353,677
51,698,719
54,052,396

93,710,046

93,007,793

64,568
1,153,720
1,218,288

47,802
669,914
717,716

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Student Groups
Unearned Tuition Revenue
Accrued Compensated Absences
Capital Lease Obligation
Bonds Payable
Total Current Liabilities

$

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Lease Obligation
Bonds Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent Year's Property Taxes
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Capital Projects
Working Cash
Specific Purposes:
Bond and Interest
Grants
Audit
Liability, Protection, and Settlement
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

326,550
1,513,618
177,564
506,355
242,398
43,054
1,965,000
4,774,539
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$

938,991
1,050,933
177,628
478,653
301,644
42,186
1,795,000
4,785,035

102,760
17,328,000
710,128
13,638,771
31,779,659

145,815
19,293,000
690,843
13,488,143
33,617,801

36,554,198

38,402,836

10,380,966
3,734,505
14,115,471

10,086,022
3,334,903
13,420,925

34,173,092

32,776,395

2,199,038
8,484,096

2,197,393
8,484,096

165,718
66,383
102,232
3,355,593
(4,287,487)

197,838
66,384
99,471
3,651,897
(5,571,726)

$ 44,258,665

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

2020

$ 41,901,748

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
REVENUES
Operating Revenues:
Student Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship Allowance of
$5,582,669 and $6,370,193, for Fiscal Years 2021 and 2020,
Respectively
Auxiliary Enterprises:
Bookstore and Cafeteria
Total Operating Revenues
EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:
Salaries
Benefits
Supplies and Other Services
Utilities
Travel
Financial Aid and Scholarships
Depreciation
Other
Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING LOSS
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property Tax Revenue
Corporate Replacement Tax Revenue
State Grants and Contracts
Federal Grants and Contracts
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Other Nonoperating Revenues
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

$

5,283,971

2020

$

5,737,614

1,178,101
6,462,072

1,412,984
7,150,598

15,019,805
14,892,984
4,151,507
883,156
137,965
3,318,712
2,330,414
756,751
41,491,294

14,928,968
14,823,659
3,937,933
869,892
207,611
2,928,638
2,335,502
1,160,953
41,193,156

(35,029,222)

(34,042,558)

10,102,273
678,848
19,882,579
6,990,155
27,031
(760,812)
232,997
37,153,071

11,262,776
535,201
19,514,135
5,785,502
327,907
(851,395)
201,798
36,775,924

233,068

66,870

INCREASE IN NET POSITION

2,356,917

2,800,236

Net Position - Beginning of Year

41,901,748

39,101,512

$ 44,258,665

$ 41,901,748

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student Tuition and Fees
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Utilities
Payments for Travel
Payments to Employees
Payments for Benefits
Payments for Financial Aid and Scholarships
Auxiliary Enterprise:
Bookstore and Cafeteria
Other Payments
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

$

5,260,029
(4,340,627)
(883,156)
(137,965)
(14,613,911)
(3,547,698)
(3,318,712)

2020
$

5,379,804
(4,039,286)
(869,892)
(207,611)
(14,717,906)
(4,208,765)
(2,928,638)

1,178,101
(767,494)
(21,171,433)

1,412,984
(1,406,620)
(21,585,930)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Local Property Taxes
Corporate Replacement Taxes
State and Federal Grants and Contracts
Building Rental Income and Other Income
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

10,102,273
678,848
15,527,448
232,997
26,541,566

11,262,776
535,201
13,409,298
201,798
25,409,073

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets, Net
Loss on Disposal of Assets
Principal Paid on Bonds/Capital Debt
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds/Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Bonds Payable/Capital Debt
Capital Gifts, Net
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities

(1,931,932)
42,008
(1,837,187)
(760,812)
233,068
(4,254,855)

(1,399,945)
(2,779,806)
118,500
(851,395)
66,870
(4,845,776)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on Investments
Sale of Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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27,031
27,031

327,907
1,000,000
1,327,907

1,142,309

305,274

25,259,657

24,954,383

$ 26,401,966

$ 25,259,657

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense
State of Illinois On-Behalf Payments
Changes in Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Related to Other Post Employment Benefits
(Increase) Decrease in:
Assets Held in Trust
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Grant-Related Pension Contributions
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities and Due to Student Groups
Unearned Tuition Revenue
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State of Illinois Contributions Provided
State of Illinois Contributions Paid

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2021

2020

$ (35,029,222)

$ (34,042,558)

2,330,414
11,345,286

2,335,502
10,614,894

(84,204)

(57,226)

360
(136,501)
443,598
(12,947)
(16,766)

(251,295)
(97,913)
2,158
(111,474)
(18,501)

(612,441)
422,660
27,702
150,628
$ (21,171,433)

(323,436)
262,796
(244,475)
345,598
$ (21,585,930)

$

11,345,286

$ 10,614,894

$

11,345,286

$ 10,614,894

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION — COMPONENT UNIT
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

Investments - Marketable Securities
Investments - Certificates of Deposit
Property and Equipment, Net
Other Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions
Total Net Assets

593,976

2020
$

808,918

6,702,127
2,093,911
694,481
12,959
$ 10,097,454

$

5,101,360
2,058,739
710,701
2,063
8,681,781

$

$

284

37,025

224,811
9,835,618
10,060,429

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 10,097,454

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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223,509
8,457,988
8,681,497
$

8,681,781

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES — COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Without Donor
Restrictions
Revenues, Gains, and Other Support:
Contributions, Net of Discount
Memberships
Sales of Merchandise, Net
Interest and Dividends
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Fundraising Events
Net Assets Released From Prior Year Restrictions
Total Revenue, Gains, and Other Support

$

Expenses:
Program Expenses:
Scholarships
Donations - Kaskaskia College
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Supplies
Program Events
Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Total Program Expenses

36,344
136
3,122
(2,619)
522,691
559,674

With Donor
Restrictions
$

Total

232,574
10,370
195,594
1,443,947
17,836
(522,691)
1,377,630

$

268,918
10,370
136
198,716
1,441,328
17,836
1,937,304

263,661
242,155
27,498
5,099
319
16,220
5,355
560,307

-

263,661
242,155
27,498
5,099
319
16,220
5,355
560,307

Management and General Expenses:
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Professional Fees
Supplies
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Total Management and General Expenses

65,048
10,525
3,959
1,330
1,436
82,298

-

65,048
10,525
3,959
1,330
1,436
82,298

Fundraising Expenses:
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Supplies
Printing and Postage
Total Fundraising Expenses

49,960
1,725
287
51,972

-

49,960
1,725
287
51,972

6,301

-

6,301

700,878

-

700,878

142,506

-

142,506

1,302

1,377,630

1,378,932

223,509

8,457,988

8,681,497

9,835,618

$ 10,060,429

Cost of Direct Benefit to Donors - Meals and Entertainment
Total Expenses
TRANSFER FROM AFFILIATE - KASKASKIA COLLEGE
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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224,811

$

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES — COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Without Donor
Restrictions
Revenues, Gains, and Other Support:
Contributions, Net of Discount
Memberships
Sales of Merchandise, Net
Interest and Dividends
Realized Loss on Investments
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Fundraising Events
Net Assets Released From Prior Year Restrictions
Total Revenue, Gains, and Other Support

$

Expenses:
Program Expenses:
Scholarships
Donations - Kaskaskia College
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Supplies
Program Events
Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Total Program Expenses

48,899
1,845
1,166
1,754
68,333
358,816
480,813

With Donor
Restrictions
$

Total

239,765
15,520
193,838
(199)
16,164
(358,816)
106,272

$

288,664
15,520
1,845
195,004
(199)
1,754
84,497
587,085

280,305
86,391
8,675
9,910
11,529
16,220
6,974
420,004

-

280,305
86,391
8,675
9,910
11,529
16,220
6,974
420,004

Management and General Expenses:
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Professional Fees
Supplies
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Total Management and General Expenses

64,994
8,300
2,440
2,413
901
79,048

-

64,994
8,300
2,440
2,413
901
79,048

Fundraising Expenses:
Salaries and Wages (In-Kind)
Supplies
Printing and Postage
Total Fundraising Expenses

46,322
5,803
851
52,976

-

46,322
5,803
851
52,976

Cost of Direct Benefit to Donors - Meals and Entertainment

35,463

-

35,463

587,491

-

587,491

119,991

-

119,991

13,313

106,272

119,585

210,196

8,351,716

8,561,912

Total Expenses
TRANSFER FROM AFFILIATE - KASKASKIA COLLEGE
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(23)

223,509

$

8,457,988

$

8,681,497

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the District) is a Community College in
southern Illinois. The District provides academic classes to students in the area as well as
community education classes in some of the outlying cities. The District contains all/part of
the following counties: Bond, Clinton, Fayette, Jefferson, Madison, Marion, Montgomery,
St. Clair, and Washington.
The accounting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to colleges and universities as well as those prescribed by the
Illinois Community College Board (ICCB). The District’s financial statements are based on all
applicable Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.
Financial Reporting Entity
The District is governed by an elected eight-member board of trustees. As required by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the financial
position and results of operations of Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the
primary government).
As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by GASB, the financial
reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its discretely presented
component unit, Kaskaskia College Foundation (the Foundation).
The Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of the District. The
Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources that are
available to the District in support of its programs. Although the District does not control the
timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources or income
thereon that the Foundation holds and invests is restricted to the activities of the District by
donors. Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or
for the benefit of, the District, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the District.
The Foundation is reported in separate financial statements because of the difference in its
reporting model, as further described below.
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports its financial results under
Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).
Most significant to the Foundation’s operations and reporting model are Accounting for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit
Organizations under the ASC topic, Not-for-Profit Entities. As such, certain revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition
criteria and presentation features. A summary of the more significant accounting policies
and notes related to the Foundation are with Note 11.
Separate financial statements of the Foundation are available. Requests should be made to
Ms. Judy Hemker, Vice President of Administrative Services of the District, at 1-618-5453105.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of Accounting
For financial reporting purposes, the District is considered a special-purpose government
engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the District’s basic financial statements
have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. All significant intra-agency and
intra-fund transactions have been eliminated. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District
receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes; federal,
state, and local grants; state appropriations; and other contributions. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the period for which the levy is intended to
finance. Revenue from grants, state appropriations, and other contributions is recognized in
the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be
used or the fiscal year when the use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Assets Held in Trust
As of June 30, 2021, the District has $250,935 invested in mutual funds that are held in trust
with the Capital Development Board.
Investments
Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with guidelines defined by GASB
Statement No. 72. Bank deposits and certificates of deposit are recorded at cost. Investment
income consists of interest earned on bank deposits and certificates of deposit.
Certificates of deposit are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Fair value for
investment securities is based on quoted market prices. Income is recognized on the
accrual basis of accounting. The District invests in the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund,
which is an external investment pool that is not SEC registered. The Illinois Funds Money
Market Fund is regulated by the State Treasurer’s Office and the Treasury Management
Investment Fund, Liquid Asset Fund Money Market, and Government Money Market Fund
are managed by financial institutions and, therefore, regulated by the Comptroller of the
Currency for Collective Investment Funds. The fair value of the position in the external
investment pools is the same as the value of the pool shares.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)
The District is allowed to invest its funds in accordance with the Illinois Public Community
College Act and the Investment of Public Funds Act. The District’s policy limits investments
to bonds, notes, Treasury bills, and other securities issued and/or guaranteed by the United
States Government or its agencies, interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit
or time deposits, or commercial paper of U.S. corporations with assets exceeding $500
million.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are uncollateralized student obligations, which generally require
payment or a payment plan to be in place prior to the start of the semester. Accounts
receivable are stated at the invoice amount.
Account balances not paid by mid-term are considered delinquent. Outstanding balances at
the end of the term may prevent students from registering for future semesters. Payments of
accounts receivable are applied to the earliest unpaid invoice.
The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance that
reflects management’s best estimate of amounts that will not be collected. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on management’s assessment of the collectability of specific
student accounts and the aging of the accounts receivable. If the actual defaults are higher
than the historical experience, management’s estimates of the recoverability of amounts due
could be adversely affected. All accounts or portions thereof deemed to be uncollectible or
to require an excessive collection cost are written off to the allowance for doubtful accounts.
The District is using the Illinois Debt Recovery program handled by the state of Illinois to
collect past balances that have been written off or remain past due.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on the first-in, first
out (FIFO) basis.
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses represent current expenditures which benefit future periods.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Assets
Capital assets include property and plant and equipment. Capital assets are defined by the
District as assets with an initial cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess
of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are completed. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The District capitalizes net interest expense on
funds used during construction. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

20 Years
50 Years
5 to 20 Years
50 Years

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows are defined as a consumption of net position by the District that is
applicable to a future reporting period, and should be reported as having a similar impact on
net position as assets. For the District, pension payments related to federal grants and
payments related to postemployment benefits other than pensions and made subsequent to
the liability measurement date are considered to be deferred outflows.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
The District’s financial statements report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an increase in net position or
fund equity that applies to a future period. The District will not recognize the related revenue
until a future event occurs. The District has two types of these items. One occurs related to
revenue recognition. This occurs because property tax receivables are recorded in the
current year. The other occurs because of the postemployment benefits other than
pensions.
Unearned Revenues and Expenses
Summer session revenues and expenses are reported as revenues are earned and
expenses are incurred. Revenue received for summer school prior to June 30 is classified
as unearned tuition revenue. Waiver expenses incurred prior to June 30 are reported as
prepaid items.
Compensated Absences
District employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their
classification. Employees may carry up to a maximum of 60 days of vacation time. Accrued
vacation is payable on termination or change in employee classification.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Compensated Absences (Continued)
The District has no commitment for accumulated sick leave and no liability is recorded.
Employees who retire are given credit for unused sick leave towards years of service in the
State Universities Retirement System.
Retiree Health Insurance Obligation
Financial reporting information pertaining to the District’s participation in the Community
College Health Insurance Security Fund (CCHISF or Fund) is prepared in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.
For purposes of measuring the retiree health insurance obligation, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits, and
benefits expense, information about the net position of the Community College Health
Insurance Security Fund and additions to/deductions from the Fund net position has been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Fund. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Net Position
The District’s net position is classified as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
This represents the District’s total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and related debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets.
Restricted Net Position
This includes resources that the District is legally or contractually obligated to spend in
accordance with restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or restrictions that are imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources when they are needed.
Unrestricted Net Position
This includes resources derived from student tuition and fees, state appropriations, and
sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. These
resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general operations of
the District and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current
expenses for any purpose.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Classification of Revenues
The District has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating. Operating
revenue includes activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such as
(a) student tuition and fees, and (b) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of
scholarship discounts and allowances. Nonoperating revenue includes activities that have
the characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as (a) local property taxes, (b) state
grants and contract, (c) federal grants and contracts, and (d) gifts and contributions.
Pensions
Financial reporting information pertaining to the District’s participation in the State
Universities Retirement System of Illinois (SURS or System) is prepared in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the plan net position of the State Universities Retirement System and additions
to/deductions from SURS’ plan net position has been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by SURS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
For purposes of financial reporting, the state of Illinois and participating employers are
considered to be under a special funding situation. A special funding situation is defined as
a circumstance in which a nonemployer entity is legally responsible for making contributions
directly to a pension plan that is used to provide pensions to the employees of another entity
or entities and either (1) the amount of the contributions for which the nonemployer entity is
legally responsible is not dependent upon one or more events unrelated to pensions or
(2) the nonemployer is the only entity with a legal obligation to make contributions directly to
a pension plan. The state of Illinois is considered a nonemployer contributing entity.
Participating employers are considered employer-contributing entities.
Property Taxes
The District’s property taxes are levied each year on all taxable real property located in the
District. The levy becomes an enforceable lien against the property as of January 1 of the
levy year. Property taxes are recorded on an accrual basis of accounting. The District
records the 2020 levy payable in 2021 as property taxes receivable, less any amounts
collected prior to June 30, 2021, and a deferred inflow of resources, as this levy is intended
to finance the District’s 2021-2022 fiscal year. The amounts accrued from year to year will
vary based upon the tax collections of the respective counties.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Component Unit
Net Asset Classification
The financial statements of the District’s discretely presented component unit are required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of
net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.


Net assets without donor restrictions include all resources available for use by the board
of directors in carrying out the activities of the Foundation in accordance with its Articles
of Incorporation and Bylaws.



Net assets with donor restrictions are only expendable for the purposes specified by the
donor or through the passage of time. When a restriction expires, (when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purposed restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue
The District’s discretely presented component unit reports gifts of cash and other assets as
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets
are released from restrictions.
NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The District’s policy relative to demand deposits is that the District will
maintain funds only in financial institutions that are members of the FDIC system and that a
selected financial institution must be capable of posting all insurance and collateral as
required at any time the District has funds on deposit with that institution. At June 30, 2021
and 2020, the bank balance of the District’s deposits, which primarily consists of demand
deposits, was $9,783,806 and $9,861,952, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, all
deposits were covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the District’s
agent in the District’s name.
The carrying values of the District’s deposits were as follows at June 30:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

2021
9,532,854

$

2020
9,405,637

The money market funds as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (Illinois Funds of $17,001,561 and
$15,854,020, respectively) are considered to be cash equivalents in the financial
statements. The Illinois Funds is a Local Government Investment Pool operated by the
Illinois State Treasurer’s Office.
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NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit Risk
The Board of Trustees has authorized the District to invest funds in accordance with the
Illinois Community College Act and the Investment of Public Funds Act, with the exception
that investments are not permitted in short-term obligations of U.S. corporations. The
District’s investment policy states that all transactions involving the funds and related activity
of any funds shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of the canons of the
“prudent person rule” The “prudent person rule” means that investments are made as a
prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and intelligence, to conform with
legal requirements, seek reasonable income, preserve capital, maintain liquidity, and, in
general, avoid speculative investments.
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Illinois School District Liquid
Asset Fund Plus and the Illinois Funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The District may be invested in a single institution so long as such funds do not exceed 50%
of the institution’s capital structure, unless approved by the treasurer. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, the District did not have any negotiable certificates of deposit.
Interest Rate Risk
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
The State Treasurer maintains the Illinois Funds Money Market at cost and fair value
through daily adjustment in the interest earnings. The State Treasurer also maintains the
weighted average duration of the pool at less than 112 days. The fair value of the District’s
investment in the fund is the same as the value of the pool shares. The pool is audited
annually by an outside independent auditor and copies of the report are distributed to
participants. The pool maintains a Standard & Poor’s AAA rating. The District’s investments
in the Illinois Funds are not required to be categorized because these are not securities. The
relationship between the District and the investment agent is a direct contractual relationship
and the investments are not supported by a transferable instrument that evidences
ownership or creditorship.
Although not subject to direct regulatory oversight, the fund is administered in accordance
with the provisions of the Illinois Public Investment Act, 30 ILCS 235.

(31)

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3

PROPERTY TAXES
The District’s property tax is levied each year on all taxable real estate located in the District.
The District’s boundaries overlap nine counties, with each serving as a local taxing authority
for the District. The levy applicable to fiscal year 2021 was adopted in November 2020 and
the levy applicable to fiscal year 2020 was adopted November 2019 and attached as an
enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Collection dates vary according to the
schedules of the individual counties with disbursements to the District normally made within
30 days of collection.
Following are the tax rates permitted and the actual rates levied per $100 of assessed
valuation:
Actual Percent

Education
Education - Equity Tax
Operations and Maintenance
Audit
Bond and Interest
Liability Insurance and
Social Security
Health-Life Safety
Total

Maximum
Rate
0.1750
0.0409
0.0750
0.0050
Unlimited

2020
Levy
0.1750
0.0372
0.0737
0.1316
0.0033

2019
Levy
0.1733
0.0401
0.0743
0.0035
0.1331

Unlimited
0.0500

0.0928
0.0491
0.5627

0.1034
0.0495
0.5772

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The District’s
property tax is levied each year at the time the budget for the ensuing year is passed and is
extended against the assessed valuation of the District on January 1. Accordingly, at
June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District had $10,380,966 and $10,086,022, respectively, of
property tax classified as deferred inflows of resources.
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NOTE 4

CAPITAL ASSETS
Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 are summarized below:
Balance
June 30, 2020
Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Artwork
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated

$

Capital Assets Being
Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Assets under Capital Lease
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Assets under Capital Lease

1,645,388
666,289
42,000

Additions/
Reclassifications

$

586,697
-

Deletions/
Reclassifications

$

(350,285)
-

Balance
June 30, 2021

$

(350,285)

1,645,388
902,701
42,000

2,353,677

586,697

2,590,089

3,555,409
69,832,199
5,909,890
3,615,932
432,011

1,056,571
416,407
180,534
-

-

3,555,409
70,888,770
6,326,297
3,796,466
432,011

83,345,441

1,653,512

-

84,998,953

2,423,101
22,810,202
4,596,599
1,523,927
292,893

117,009
1,750,318
320,088
124,225
18,774

-

2,540,110
24,560,520
4,916,687
1,648,152
311,667

31,646,722

2,330,414

-

33,977,136

Total Accumulated
Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net

$

54,052,396

$

(90,205)

$

(350,285)

$

53,611,906

The construction in progress relates to various renovation projects. In relation to
construction in progress, the District has $-0- in future construction commitments as of
June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 4

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 are summarized below:
Balance

Additions/

Deletions/

Balance

June 30, 2019

Reclassifications

Reclassifications

June 30, 2020

Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated:
Land

$

Construction in Progress
Artwork

1,645,388

$

-

1,335,988

1,251,576

42,000

-

3,023,376

1,251,576

$

-

$

(1,921,275)

1,645,388
666,289

-

42,000

Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated

(1,921,275)

2,353,677

Capital Assets Being
Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings

3,555,409

-

-

3,555,409

68,502,324

1,329,875

-

69,832,199

Machinery and Equipment

5,569,971

348,819

(8,900)

5,909,890

Infrastructure

3,567,531

272,450

(224,049)

3,615,932

320,102

118,500

(6,591)

432,011

81,515,337

2,069,644

(239,540)

83,345,441

Assets under Capital Lease
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements
Buildings

2,302,403

120,698

-

2,423,101

21,047,926

1,762,276

-

22,810,202

Machinery and Equipment

4,307,082

298,417

(8,900)

4,596,599

Infrastructure

1,611,477

136,499

(224,049)

1,523,927

281,872

17,612

(6,591)

292,893

29,550,760

2,335,502

(239,540)

31,646,722

Assets under Capital Lease
Total Accumulated
Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net

$

54,987,953

$

985,718

$

(1,921,275)

$

54,052,396

Capital asset additions reconcile to the purchases of capital assets in the statements of cash
flows as follows:
Total Additions Per Note Above
Transfer of CIP Into Service
Purchase of Capital Assets Per
Statements of Cash Flows
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$

2021
2,240,210
(308,278)

$

2020
3,321,220
(1,921,275)

$

1,931,932

$

1,399,945

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM DEBT
A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 is
as follows:
Balance
June 30, 2020
Accrued Compensated
Absences
Capital Lease Obligation
Bonds Payable
Total

$

$

992,487
188,001
21,088,000
22,268,488

Additions
$

$

Balance
June 30, 2019
Accrued Compensated
Absences
Capital Lease Obligation
Bonds Payable
Total

$

$

839,899
35,124
23,838,000
24,713,023

112,900
112,900

Deletions
$

$

Additions
$

$

250,281
179,552
429,833

(152,861)
(42,187)
(1,795,000)
(1,990,048)

Deletions
$

$

(97,693)
(26,675)
(2,750,000)
(2,874,368)

Balance
June 30, 2021
$

$

952,526
145,814
19,293,000
20,391,340

Due Within
One Year
$

$

Balance
June 30, 2020
$

$

992,487
188,001
21,088,000
22,268,488

242,398
43,054
1,965,000
2,250,452

Due Within
One Year
$

$

301,644
42,186
1,795,000
2,138,830

General Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2006
Original issue of $9,315,000, dated April 1, 2006. The bonds provide for serial retirement of
principal each December with interest payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year
starting December 1, 2007, at an average interest rate of 4.68%. The maturity date of the
bonds is December 1, 2021. On March 2, 2012, $4,050,000 of the outstanding balance was
advanced refunded with Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2012. As of June 30,
2021, the outstanding balance on the refunded debt is $1,035,000.
General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2012
Original issue of $17,610,000, dated March 2, 2012, maturing December 1, 2019 through
December 1, 2028 with an average interest rate of 4.86% to provide $12,500,000 for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, to advance refund $400,000 of the
outstanding Protection, Health, and Safety Bonds, Series 2001, with an interest rate of
4.85% and to advance refund $4,050,000 of the General Obligation Community College
Bonds, Series 2006, with an average interest rate of 4.44%. The net proceeds related to the
refunding of $4,895,991 were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the Series 2001 and portion of the Series 2006 being
refunded. As a result, the Series 2001 bonds and part of the Series 2006 bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
statements of net position. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is $16,500,000.
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
General Obligation Bonds (Continued)
Taxable General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2016
Original issue of $3,280,000, dated February 19, 2016, maturing December 1, 2017 through
December 1, 2019 with an average interest rate of 3.96%. The bonds were issued to
increase the working cash fund of the District. During fiscal year 2020 the outstanding
balance was paid off.
General Obligation Bonds (Alternative Revenue Source), Series 2018
On September 13, 2018, the District issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds
(Alternative Revenue Source), Series 2018, in the amount of $2,133,000. Principal
installments are due serially on December 1, 2019 through 2028. Interest is payable on the
first day of June and December each year. Interest rate is 2.79%. The proceeds of the
bonds were used to currently refund a portion of the District’s outstanding General
Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2009, and pay costs associated with the
issuance of the Bonds. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is $1,758,000.
At June 30, 2021, the annual requirements to retire all bonds payable, including principal
and interest, and meet noncancelable lease obligations were as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Less: Interest
Total

Bonds
Payable
$ 2,643,952
2,733,058
2,829,633
2,951,994
3,077,206
7,926,704
(2,869,547)
$ 19,293,000

Leases
Payable
$
46,225
39,620
38,159
28,620
(6,810)
$
145,814

Total
2,690,177
2,772,678
2,867,792
2,980,614
3,077,206
7,926,704
(2,876,357)
$ 19,438,814

$

Bonded debt matures as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total

Principal
1,965,000
2,150,000
2,335,000
2,535,000
2,745,000
7,563,000
$ 19,293,000

$

Interest
678,952
583,058
494,633
416,994
332,206
363,704
$ 2,869,547
$

Total
2,643,952
2,733,058
2,829,633
2,951,994
3,077,206
7,926,704
$ 22,162,547
$

Interest costs charged to operations consist of the following for the years ended June 30:
Interest Charged to Operations

$
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2021
760,812

$

2020
851,395
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Direct Placement
All of the general obligation bonds originate from direct placement, which means that they
were issued to a single purchaser. There were no assets pledged as collateral. There are
also no finance-related consequences in the unlikely event that the College is unable to pay
the remaining principal.

NOTE 6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
General Information About the Pension Plan
Plan Description. The District contributes to the State University Retirement System of
Illinois (SURS or System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a
special funding situation whereby the state of Illinois (the State) makes substantially all
actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS
was established July 21, 1941 to provide retirement annuities and other benefits for staff
members and employees of state universities, certain affiliated organizations, and certain
other state educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents, and other
beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is considered a component unit of the state of
Illinois’ financial reporting entity and is included in the state’s financial reports as a pension
trust fund. SURS is governed by, Chapter 40, Act 5, Article 15 of the Illinois Compiled
Statutes. SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by accessing the
website at www.SURS.org.
Benefits Provided. A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941. Public Act 90-0448
enacted effective January 1, 1998, established an alternative defined benefit program
known as the portable benefit package. The traditional and portable plan Tier 1 refers to
members that began participation prior to January 1, 2011. Public Act 96-0889 revised the
traditional and portable benefit plans for members who begin participation on or after
January 1, 2011, and who do not have other eligible Illinois reciprocal system services. The
revised plan is referred to as Tier 2. New employees are allowed 6 months after their date of
hire to make an irrevocable election. A summary of the benefit provisions as of June 30,
2020 can be found in the System’s comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) Notes to
the Financial Statements.
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NOTE 6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
General Information About the Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions. The state of Illinois is primarily responsible for funding the System on behalf
of the individual employers at an actuarially determined amount. Public Act 88-0593
provides a Statutory Funding Plan consisting of two parts: (i) a ramp-up period from 1996 to
2010 and (ii) a period of contributions equal to a level percentage of the payroll of active
members of the System to reach 90% of the total Actuarial Accrued Liability by the end of
Fiscal Year 2045. Employer contributions from “trust, federal, and other funds” are provided
under Section 15-155(b) of the Illinois Pension Code and require employers to pay
contributions which are sufficient to cover the accruing normal costs on behalf of applicable
employees. The employer normal cost for fiscal year 2021 and 2020, respectively, was
12.70% and 13.02% of employee payroll. The normal cost is equal to the value of current
year’s pension benefit and does not include any allocation for the past unfunded liability or
interest on the unfunded liability. Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their
annual covered salary. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are
established and may be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.
Participating employers make contributions toward separately financed specific liabilities
under Section 15-139.5(e) of the Illinois Pension Code (relating to contributions payable due
to the employment of “affected annuitants” or specific return to work annuitants) and
Section 15-155(g) (relating to contributions payable due to earning increases exceeding 6%
during the final rate of earnings period).
Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Net Pension Liability
SURS reported a net pension liability (NPL) of $30,619,504,321 at June 30, 2020. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020.
Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
The amount of the proportionate share of the net pension liability to be recognized for the
District as of June 30, 2020 was $-0-. The proportionate share of the State’s net pension
liability associated with the District is $101,045,824 or 0.3300% as of June 30, 2020. This
amount is not recognized in these financial statements. The net pension liability and total
pension liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined based on the June 30, 2019 actuarial
valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of net
pension liability is the actual pensionable contributions made to SURS during fiscal year
2020.
Pension Expense
At June 30, 2020, SURS reported a collective net pension expense of $3,364,411,021.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
Employer Proportionate Share of Pension Expense
The District’s proportionate share of collective pension expense is recognized similarly to
on-behalf payments as both revenue and matching expenditure in the financial statements.
The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of collective pension expense is the
actual reported pensionable contributions made to SURS during fiscal year 2020. As a
result, the District recognized on-behalf revenue and pension expense of $11,102,717 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the system that is
applicable to future reporting periods.
SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes in Assumption
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
$
170,987,483
473,019,629
474,659,178
$ 1,118,666,290

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources
$

$

-

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)
SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to be
Recognized in Future Pension Expenses:
Net Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
435,271,667
346,428,171
183,483,935
153,482,517
$ 1,118,666,290

Year Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

Employer Deferral of Pension Expense
The District paid $64,568 in federal, trust or grant contributions for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021. These contributions were made subsequent to the pension liability
measurement dates of June 30, 2020 and are recognized as deferred outflows of resources
as of June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Assumptions and Other Inputs
Actuarial Assumptions. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2014 - 2017.
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

2.25%
3.25 to 12.25%, including inflation
6.75% beginning with the actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2018

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Combined Mortality Table, projected with
generational mortality and separate mortality assumption for disabled participants.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return were adopted by the plan’s trustees after considering input from the plan’s investment
consultant(s) and actuary(ies). For each major asset class that is included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020, these best estimates are summarized in
the following table:

Target
Allocation
44 %
14
5
6
8
3
6
8
2
2
2
100 %

Asset Class
Global Public Equity
Credit Fixed Income
Core Real Assets
Options Strategies
Private Equity
Non-Core Real Assets
U.S. TIPS
Core Fixed Income
Systematic Trend Following
Alternative Risk Premia
Long Duration
Total
Inflation
Expected Arithmetic Return

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
6.67 %
2.39
4.14
4.44
9.66
8.70
0.13
(0.45)
2.16
1.60
0.86
4.84
2.25
7.09 %
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Assumptions and Other Inputs (Continued)
Discount Rate. A single discount rate of rate of 6.49% was used at June 30, 2020, to
measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on an expected rate
of return on pension plan investments of 6.75% at June 30, 2020 and a municipal bond rate
of 2.45% at June 30, 2020 (based on the weekly rate closest to but not later than the
measurement date of the 20-Year Bond Buyer Index as published by the Federal Reserve).
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate were the amounts of
contributions attributable to current plan members and assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions
will be made at rates equal to the statutory contribution rates under the System’s funding
policy. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future
contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments through the year 2075. As a
result, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through the year 2075, and the municipal bond rate was applied
to all benefit payments after that date.
Sensitivity of the System’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. Regarding
the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following
presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a single discount rate of 6.49% at
June 30, 2020, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a single discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher:

1% Decrease
5.49%
$ 36,893,469,884

June 30, 2020
Current Single
Discount
Rate Assumption
6.49%
$ 30,619,504,321

1% Increase
7.49%
$ 25,441,837,592

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements including the Plan Net
Position can be found in the SURS comprehensive annual financial report by accessing the
website at www.SURS.org.
Changes of Benefit Terms. There was no benefit changes recognized in the total pension
liability as of June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 6

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Assumptions and Other Inputs (Continued)
Changes of Assumptions. In accordance with Illinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review
is to be performed at least once every three years to determine the reasonableness of
actuarial assumptions regarding the retirement, disability, mortality, turnover, interest, and
salary of the members and benefit recipients of SURS. An experience review for the years
June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2017 was performed in February 2018, resulting in the adoption
of new assumptions as of June 30, 2018.


Salary increase. Change assumption to service-based rates, ranging from 3.25% to
12.25% based on years of service, with underlying wage inflation of 2.25%.



Investment return. Decrease the investment return assumption to 6.75 percent. This
reflects maintaining an assumed real rate of return of 4.50% and decreasing the
underlying assumed price inflation to 2.25%.



Effective rate of interest. Decrease the long-term assumption for the ERI for crediting
the money purchase accounts to 6.75% (effective July 2, 2019).



Normal retirement rates. A slight increase in the retirement rate at age 50. No
change to the rates for ages 60-61, 67-74, and 80+, but a slight decrease in rates at
all other ages. A rate of 50% if the member has 40 or more years of service and is
younger than age 80.



Early retirement rates. Decrease in rates for all Tier 1 early retirement eligibility ages
(55-59).



Turnover rates. Change to produce lower expected turnover for members with less
than 10-years of service and higher turnover for members with more than 10-years of
service.



Mortality rates. Maintain the RP-2014 mortality tables with projected generational
mortality improvement. Update the projection scale from the MP-2014 to the MP2017 scale.



Disability rates. Decrease current rates to reflect that certain members who receive
disability benefits do not receive the benefits on a long-term basis.
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NOTE 7

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)
General Information About the OPEB Plan
Plan Administration
The District participates in the state of Illinois Community College Health Insurance Security
Fund (CCHISF) (also known as the College Insurance Program, “CIP”). CIP is a
nonappropriated trust fund held outside the State Treasury, with the State Treasurer as
custodian. Additions deposited into the Trust are for the sole benefit of providing the health
benefits to retirees, as established under the plan, and associated administrative costs. CIP
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan that
covers retired employees and their dependents of Illinois community college districts
throughout the state of Illinois, excluding the City Colleges of Chicago. As a result of the
Governor’s Executive Order 12-01, the responsibilities in relation to CIP were transferred to
the Department of Central Management Services (Department) as of July 1, 2013. The
department administers the plan with the cooperation of the State Universities Retirement
System and the boards of trustees of the various community college districts. Separate
financial statements, including required supplementary information, may be obtained from
the Department at 715 Stratton Office Building, Springfield, Illinois, 62706.
Plan Membership
All members receiving benefits from the State Universities Retirement System (SURS) who
have been full-time employees of a community college district or an association of a
community college district who have paid the required active member CIP contributions prior
to retirement are eligible to participate in CIP. Survivors of an annuitant or benefit recipient
eligible for CIP coverage are also eligible for coverage under CIP.
Benefits Provided
Health, dental, and vision benefits include basic benefits for annuitants and dependents
under the State’s self-insurance plan and insurance contracts currently in force. Annuitants
may be required to contribute towards health, dental, and vision benefits with the amount
based on factors such as date of retirement, years of credited service with the State,
whether the annuitant is covered by Medicare, and whether the annuitant has chosen a
managed health care plan. Annuitants who retired prior to January 1, 1998, and who are
vested in the State University’s Retirement System do not contribute towards health, dental,
and vision benefits. For annuitants who retired on or after January 1, 1998, the annuitant’s
contribution amount is reduced five percent for each year of credited service with the State
allowing those annuitants with twenty or more years of credited service to not have to
contribute towards health, dental, and vision benefits. Annuitants also receive life insurance
coverage equal to the annual salary of the last day of employment until age 60, at which
time the benefit becomes $5,000.
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NOTE 7

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
General Information About the OPEB Plan (Continued)
Contributions
The Act requires every active contributor (employee) of SURS to contribute .5% of covered
payroll and every community college district to contribute .5% of covered payroll. Retirees
pay a premium for coverage that is also determined by ILCS. The State Pension Funds
Continuing Appropriation Act (40/ILCS 15/1.4) requires the State of Illinois to make an
annual appropriation to the CIP to cover any expected expenditures in excess of the
contributions by active employees, employers, and retirees. The result is pay as you go
financing of the plan. The employer contributions made by the state of Illinois on behalf of
the District to CIP for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $68,814 and $64,111,
respectively. The College’s contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
were $70,645 and $68,814, respectively.
Illinois Community College Health Insurance Security Fund – OPEB Liabilities,
Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB
The District reported a liability of $13,638,771 as of June 30, 2021. This amount is the
District’s proportional share of the net OPEB liability. The State of Illinois is considered a
nonemployer contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special
funding situation. The State of Illinois’ proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
associated with the District totaled $13,638,771. The net OPEB liability was measured as of
June 30, 2020. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, with procedures performed to roll
forward the total OPEB liability to the June 30, 2020 measurement date. The District’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the District’s share of contributions to the
OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers and the state of Illinois.
At June 30, 2020, the District’s proportion was 0.748247%.
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $137,070 for
its proportionate share of the OPEB expense. In addition, the district recognized an
additional $242,569 as OPEB expense (and revenue) for its proportionate share of the state
of Illinois’ contribution to the plan.
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POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
Illinois Community College Health Insurance Security Fund – OPEB Liabilities,
Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (Continued)
At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Amounts Related to OPEB
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in OPEB Expense in
Future Periods
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment
Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
Employer Contributions and Share of Contributions

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

$

Total Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in OPEB
Expense in Future Periods
OPEB Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date
Total Deferred Amounts Related to OPEB

$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

123,897
-

$

763,334
2,180,340

-

578

959,178

790,253

1,083,075

3,734,505

70,645

-

1,153,720

$

3,734,505

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense in future periods as follows:
Net
Deferred
Outflows (Inflows)
of Resources
$
(530,286)
(530,286)
(530,286)
(530,286)
(530,286)
$
(2,651,430)

Year Ended June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
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NOTE 7

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
Illinois Community College Health Insurance Security Fund – OPEB Liabilities,
Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (Continued)
Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total CIP plan’s net OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement date,
unless otherwise specified.





Inflation – 2.25%
Salary increases – depends on service and ranges from 12.25% at less than
1 year of service to 3.25% at 34 or more years of service. Salary increase
includes a 3.25% wage inflation assumption
Investment rate of return – 0%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including
inflation, for all plan years.
Healthcare cost trend rates – actual trend used for fiscal year 2020 based on
premium increases. For fiscal years on or after 2021, trend starts at 8.25% and
9.00% for non-Medicare costs and post Medicare costs, respectively, and
gradually decreases to an ultimate trend rate of 4.25%. There is no additional
trend rate due to the repeal of the Excise Tax.

Mortality rates for retirement and beneficiary annuitants were based on the RP-2014 White
Collar Annuitant Mortality Table. For disabled annuitants mortality rates were based on the
RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant table. Mortality rates for pre-retirement were based on the RP2014 White Collar table. Tables were adjusted for SURS experience. All tables reflect
mortality improvements using Projection Scale MP-2017.
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 20, 2019 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2017.
Changes in assumptions reflect a change in the single discount rate from 3.13% in 2019 to
2.45% in 2020.
Discount Rate
Projected benefit payments were discounted to their actuarial present value using a Single
Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan
investments (to the extent that the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to
pay benefits), and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general
obligation bond with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent
that the contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met). Since
CIP is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, a discount rate consistent with fixed-income
municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal
bonds as reported in Fidelity’s index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” has been selected.
The discount rates are 3.13% as of June 30, 2019, and 2.45% as of June 30, 2020. This is a
decrease of .68% from 2019 to 2020.
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NOTE 7

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
Illinois Community College Health Insurance Security Fund – OPEB Liabilities,
Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (Continued)
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportional Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Single Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportional share of the net OPEB liability, calculated
using a Single Discount Rate of 2.45%, as well as what the District’s proportional share of
the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (1.45%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.45%) than the current
discount rate:

Net OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption
Current Single
Discount
1% Decrease
Rate Assumption
1.45%
2.45%
$
15,540,374
$
13,638,771

1% Increase
3.45%
$
11,998,941

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportional Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates.
The following presents the District’s proportional share of the net OPEB liability, calculated
using the healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the District’s proportional share of the
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend
rates. The key trend rates are 8.25% in 2021 decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.25%
in 2037, for non-Medicare coverage, and 9.00% in 2020 decreasing to an ultimate trend rate
of 4.50% in 2029 for Medicare coverage.

Net OPEB Liability




Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020
to the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Assumption
Healthcare Cost
Trend
1% Decrease
Rate Assumption
$
11,301,089
$
13,638,771

1% Increase
$
16,739,602

One percentage point decrease in healthcare trend rates are 7.25% in 2021
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 3.25% in 2037
One percentage point increase in healthcare trend rates are 9.25% in 2021
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5.25% in 2037.
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NOTE 8

RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.
The District has purchased commercial insurance to cover these risks. Settlements have not
exceeded insurance coverages for each of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 9

LEASE COMMITMENTS AND TOTAL RENT EXPENSE
Capital Leases
The District has capital lease agreements on equipment with a remaining net book value of
$145,814 and $188,001 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As the leases are
considered to be capital, the equipment was recorded at the present value of the minimum
future payments due under the leases. The leases are with financial institutions and thirdparty companies and are due in monthly or annual installments with the final installments
due until March 2025 and collateralized by equipment under the capital leases.
Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total Minimum Lease Payments
Less: Amount Representing Interest
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments
(Current $43,054; Long-Term $102,760)

$

$

Amount
46,225
39,620
38,159
28,620
152,624
6,810
145,814

Operating Leases
The District has entered into various building leases and small office equipment leases.
Total operating lease expense for the years ended 2021 and 2020 was $183,122 and
$193,922, respectively. Future operating lease commitments continue until June 30, 2022.
$175,922 is due as of June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 10 COMPENSATED ABSENCES
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, employees had earned but unused annual vacation, which at
salary rates in effect at the end of the year totaled $952,526 and $992,487, respectively. For
sick leave, the District operates under a personnel policy which allows accumulation from
year to year. The policy allows unused sick leave to be applied toward service credit for
retirement. Since the accumulated sick leave is not subject to reasonable estimation, no
liability has been recorded in the financial statements.

Beginning Balance
Additions (Deletions) *
Ending Balance

$
$

June 30,
2021
992,487
$
(39,961)
952,526
$

2020
839,899
152,588
992,487

* This represents net change of accrued vacation.

NOTE 11 COMPONENT UNIT
Kaskaskia College Foundation (the Foundation) is a nonprofit corporation, organized under
the authority of a charter issued by the Secretary of State of Illinois on October 29, 1964, for
the following purposes:
•

Foster and assist in maintaining an area Community College, as defined by the laws of
the state of Illinois, in an area composed of Community College District #501, and to
receive, hold, and administer gifts of money or property, real or personal, for such
purposes;

•

Assist in developing and increasing the facilities of such Community College for
broader opportunities for and service to its students and patrons, and to the citizens of
the state of Illinois, by encouraging gifts of money, property, works of art, historical
papers and documents, museum specimens and other material having educational,
artistic or historical value, and by other proper means as may seem advisable;

•

Receive, hold and administer such gifts with the primary object of serving purposes
other than those for which such area Community College school district, and the state
of Illinois, ordinarily make sufficient appropriations; to receive gifts for and establish,
maintain and administer scholarships; to administer gifts, grants or loans of money or
property, real or personal; whether made by or for the benefit of public governmental
bodies, local, state or national, or by or for the benefit of corporations or natural
persons, and whether in the form of conventional express trusts or otherwise.
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NOTE 11 COMPONENT UNIT (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies and notes to the
financial statements for the component unit:
Promises to Give
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Foundation
that is, in substance, unconditional. Conditional promises to give are not recognized as
revenue until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of
assets other than cash are initially recorded at their fair value. Unconditional gifts expected
to be collected in more than one year are initially recorded at their fair value determined by
risk adjusted rate at the date the promise is made. Amortization of discounts is recorded as
additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the
contributions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.
An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is determined based upon
management’s judgment, including such factors as prior collection history, type of
contribution, and nature of fundraising activity.
Income Taxes
The Foundation is a nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue Service as
other than a private foundation. Accordingly, no provision for income tax expense is included
in the accompanying financial statements.
Investments
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statements of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets. Investment
income and gains restricted by a donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in
which the income and gains are recognized. Investment income is reported net of external
and direct internal expenses.
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NOTE 11 COMPONENT UNIT (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for
measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described below:
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access.
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
- quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets:
- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.
If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the
fair value measurement.
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at
fair value and their classification in the valuation hierarchy. There have been no changes in
the methodologies used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.
Equity securities and mutual funds listed on a national market or exchange are valued at the
last sales price, or if there is no sale and the market is still considered active, at the last
transaction price before year-end. Such securities are classified within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy.
Debt securities consisting of corporate bonds and government agency debt obligations are
generally valued at the most recent price of the equivalent quoted yield for such securities,
or those of comparable maturity, quality, and type. Debt securities are generally classified
within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
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NOTE 11 COMPONENT UNIT (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the
component units believe their valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the
reporting date.
Following is a description of the nature of the categories of mutual funds by major security
type.
Equity Funds: This asset class is generally comprised of investment options that invest
in shares of ownership in large to small companies.
Fixed Income Funds: This asset class is generally comprised of investment options in
bonds, or debt, of a company or governmental entity.
The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the component unit’s
assets at fair value as of June 30:

Level 1
Corporate Bonds
Mutual Funds
Total Assets at
Fair Value

$

6,159,451

$

$

6,161,472

$

Level 1
Corporate Bonds
Mutual Funds
Total Assets at
Fair Value

$

4,854,533

$

$

4,854,533

$

2021
Level 2
542,676
$
5,438,160

$

2020
Level 2
246,827
$
246,827

$

Level 3
-

Total
$
542,676
6,159,451

4,545,598

$ 11,837,286

Level 3

Total
246,827
4,854,533

-

$

-

$ 5,101,360

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The District is from time to time subject to various claims, legal actions, and inquiries relating
to compliance with environmental and other governmental laws and regulations arising in
the ordinary course of business. Although it is difficult to quantify the potential impact of
these claims, management believes that the ultimate settlement of these matters will not
adversely affect the District’s future financial condition or results of operations as the District
has the ability to levy funds through local real estate taxes specifically for these purposes.
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NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Continued)
Accordingly, management does not believe that a reserve for the future effect, if any, of
these matters on the financial condition or results of operations of the District is necessary at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 as it is not possible to determine with any degree of probability the
level of future expenditures for these matters.
Federal and State Grants
The District has received a number of federal and state grants for specific purposes which
are subject to review and audit by grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for
reimbursement to granting agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the
grants. Based on prior experience, the District’s management believes that such
disallowances, if any, will not be material.
Litigation
As of June 30, 2021, the District is a party to a number of lawsuits arising in the normal
course of operations. While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty,
management believes that the final outcome of such litigation will not have a materially
adverse effect on the financial statements of the District.
NOTE 13 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
The District’s functional allocation of expenses is as follows for the years ended June 30:
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Public Services
Auxiliary Services
Operations and Maintenance of Plant
Institutional Support
Scholarships, Student Grants, and Waivers
Depreciation Expense

$

$

Total

2021
16,139,404
3,658,867
2,825,629
30,562
2,833,102
3,688,333
6,905,408
3,079,575
2,330,414
41,491,294

$

$

2020
16,421,271
3,802,871
2,601,448
112,666
2,668,256
3,928,516
6,464,838
2,857,788
2,335,502
41,193,156

NOTE 14 UNCERTAINTIES
The World Health Organization previously declared the spread of Coronavirus Disease
(COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. Subsequent to year-end, the COVID-19 pandemic is
having significant effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities.
Specific to the District, COVID-19 may impact various parts of its 2022 operations and
financial results. Management believes the District is taking appropriate actions to mitigate
the negative impact. However, the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be
reasonably estimated as these events are still developing.
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NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Bond Issuance
On October 5, 2021, the District issued General Obligation Debt Certificates, Series 2021, in
the amount of $24,070,000. The certificates were issued in the aggregate principal amount
of $24,070,000 and are due on June 1, 2041. The first interest payment is due June 1, 2022.
Interest rate is .35%. The proceeds of the certificates will be used to complete capital
projects in and for the District, including, but not limited to, modernization of classrooms,
renovations to District offices and facilities and replacement of the gymnasium, including, in
connection with said work, acquisition of all land or rights in land, mechanical, electrical, and
other services necessary, useful or advisable thereto, and pay costs associated with the
issuance of the Certificates.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
STATE UNIVERSITIES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF ILLINOIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

State Universities Retirement System (SURS)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2020

District's proportion percentage of the collective net pension liability
District's proportionate amount of the collective net pension liability
Portion of nonemployer contributing entitiesʾ total proportion of
collective net pension liability associated with District

0.00%
-

$

Total
Districtʾs defined benefit covered payroll

2019

$

2018

0.00%
-

$

District's covered payroll

$ 14,820,231

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
On-behalf payments for Community College Health Insurance
Program

$

0.00%
-

$

0.00%
-

95,635,510

84,529,792

$ 101,045,824

$ 93,282,791

$ 86,635,348

$ 79,883,267

$ 101,001,267

$ 95,635,510

$ 84,529,792

$ 12,260,866

$ 11,779,688

$ 11,296,986

$ 11,105,140

$ 14,093,871

$ 14,752,158

$ 14,153,659

$

(64,568)
-

0.00%
101,001,267

824.13%

791.90%

766.89%

719.34%

716.63%

648.28%

597.23%

39.05%

40.71%

41.27%

42.04%

39.57%

42.37%

44.39%

2020

$

$

79,883,267

2021

Contribution deficiency (excess)

0.00%
-

86,635,348

Schedule of District Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
64,568

$

2014

93,282,791

SURS plan net pension as a percentage of the total pension liability

$

0.00%
-

2015

101,045,824

Proportion of collective net pension liability associated with the
District as a percentage of its covered payroll

Contractually required contribution
Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution

Measurement Period, June 30
2017
2016

47,802

$

(47,802)
$

-

$ 14,427,726

0.44%
70,645

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2018
2017

2019

0.33%
68,814

* Note: SURS implemented GASB No. 68 in fiscal year 2015. The information above is presented
for as many years as available. The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
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29,301

$

(29,301)
$

-

$ 13,504,051
0.22%
64,111

22,749

$

(22,749)
$

-

$ 12,888,389
0.18%
60,878

2016

28,502

$

(28,502)
$

-

$ 12,623,049
0.23%
59,539

2015

44,375

$

(44,375)
$

-

$ 15,726,548
0.28%
$73,512

2014

65,260

$

(65,260)
$

-

$ 16,460,388
0.40%
$75,404

61,261
(61,261)

$

-

$ 15,897,153
0.39%
$71,686

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
COMMUNITY COLLEGE HEALTH INSURANCE SECURITY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Measurement Date
June 30, 2020

Measurement Date
June 30, 2019

Measurement Date
June 30, 2018

Measurement Date
June 30, 2017

0.748247%

0.714210%

0.697124%

0.686268%

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability
Portion of nonemployer contributing entities' total proportion
of collective net OPEB liability associated with employer

$

13,638,771

$

13,488,143

$

13,142,545

$

12,350,206

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

$

13,638,771

$

13,488,143

$

13,142,545

$

12,515,035

District's covered-employee payroll

$

14,427,726

$

13,504,051

$

12,888,389

$

12,623,049

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability

94.53%

99.88%

101.97%

99.14%

-5.07%

-4.13%

-3.54%

-2.87%

Note: Information is not available prior to 2017. Additional years will be added to future
reports as schedules are intended to show 10 years of historical data.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS
COMMUNITY COLLEGE HEALTH INSURANCE SECURITY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
Contractually Required Contribution

2021
$

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution

2020

70,645

$

(70,645)

2019

68,814

$

(68,814)

2018

64,111

$

(64,111)

2017

60,878

$

(60,878)

60,102
(60,102)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

$

14,820,231

$

14,427,726

$

13,504,051

$

12,888,389

$

12,623,049

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

0.476679%

Note: Information is not available prior to 2017. Additional years will be added to future
reports as schedules are intended to show 10 years of historical data.
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0.476957%

0.474754%

0.472348%

0.476129%

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMMUNITY COLLEGE HEALTH INSURANCE SECURITY FUND
JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

NOTE 1

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS
In the June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations, there were no changes of
benefit terms.

NOTE 2

CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS
In the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following assumption changes were made:


The discount rate was changed from 3.13 percent at June 30, 2019, to 2.45 percent at
June 30, 2020.



The healthcare trend assumption was updated based on claim and enrollment
experience through June 30, 2019, projected plan cost for plan year-end June 30, 2020,
premium changes through plan year-end 2020, and expectation of future trend increases
after June 30, 2020.



Since the Excise Tax was repealed, the Excise Tax trend adjustment was removed.



Per capita claim costs for plan year-end June 30, 2020, were updated based on
projected claims and enrollment experience through June 30, 2020, and updated
premium rates through plan year-end 2021.



Healthcare plan participation rates by plan were updated based on observed experience.

In the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following assumption changes were made:


The discount rate was changed from 3.62 percent at June 30, 2018, to 3.13 percent at
June 30, 2019.

•

The healthcare trend assumption was updated based on claim and enrollment
experience through June 30, 2018, projected plan cost for plan year-end June 30, 2019,
premium changes through plan year-end 2019, and expectation of future trend increases
after June 30, 2019.

•

The Excise Tax trend adjustment was updated based on available premium and
enrollment information as of June 30, 2019.

•

Per capita claim costs for plan year-end June 30, 2019, were updated based on
projected claims and enrollment experience through June 30, 2019, and updated
premium rates through plan year-end 2020.

•

Healthcare plan participation rates by plan were updated based on observed experience.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
ASSESSED VALUATIONS AND TAXES LEVIED —
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
LEVY YEARS 2020 AND 2019
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

ASSESSED VALUES AS EQUALIZED

2020 Levy

2019 Levy

$ 1,844,959,737

$ 1,792,227,886

0.1750
0.0372
0.0737
0.1316
0.0033
0.0928
0.0491

0.1733
0.0401
0.0743
0.1331
0.0035
0.1034
0.0495

0.5627

0.5772

TAX RATES (Per $100 of Assessed Valuation)
Education Fund
Education Fund - Equity Tax
Operations and Maintenance Fund
Bond and Interest Fund
Audit Fund
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund
Protection, Health, and Safety
Total
TAXES EXTENDED
Education Fund
Education Fund - Equity Tax
Operations and Maintenance Fund
Bond and Interest Fund
Audit Fund
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund
Protection, Health, and Safety
Total

(61)

$

3,171,056
744,305
1,359,038
2,427,090
60,519
1,712,875
906,083

$

3,026,331
700,408
1,296,976
2,330,991
60,296
1,806,359
864,661

$

10,380,966

$

10,086,022

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
SUMMARY OF TAXES RECEIVABLE AND TAX COLLECTIONS —
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
LEVY YEARS 2020 AND 2019
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Levy
Year

Assessed
Valuation

Combined
Rate

2020

$ 1,844,959,737

0.5627

$ 10,380,966

2019

1,792,227,886

0.5772

10,086,022

Total

Taxes
Extended

Collected
During
Year Ended
June 30,
2021

Total
Collected to
June 30,
2020
$

$

-

$

Total
Collected to
June 30,
2021
-

$

Percent
Collected
June 30,
2021
-

0.00%

-

10,086,022

10,086,022

100.00%

-

$ 10,086,022

$ 10,086,022

2020 Taxes Extended
Allowance
Uncollected
For
Balance
June 30,
Uncollectible
After
2021
Taxes
Allowance
Education Fund
Education Fund - Equity Tax
Operations and Maintenance Fund
Bond and Interest Fund
Audit Fund
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund
Protection, Health, and Safety
Total

$

3,171,056
744,305
1,359,038
2,427,090
60,519
1,712,875
906,083

$

-

$

$ 10,380,966

$

-

$ 10,380,966

(62)

3,171,056
744,305
1,359,038
2,427,090
60,519
1,712,875
906,083

Allowance
for
Uncollectible
Taxes
$

$

Balance
After
Allowance

-

$ 10,380,966

-

-

-

$ 10,380,966

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
SCHEDULE OF DEBT MATURITIES
JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total

Amounts Due During Year
Principal
Interest
Total
$
1,965,000
$
678,952
$
2,643,952
2,150,000
583,058
2,733,058
2,335,000
494,633
2,829,633
2,535,000
416,994
2,951,994
2,745,000
332,206
3,077,206
7,563,000
363,704
7,926,704
$ 22,162,547
$ 19,293,000
$
2,869,547

(63)

Unpaid
Principal
Balance
$ 17,328,000
15,178,000
12,843,000
10,308,000
7,563,000
-

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Assessed Valuation - 2020 Levy

$ 1,844,959,737

Debt Limit - 2.875% of Assessed Valuation

$

Less Bonded Indebtedness

53,042,592
19,293,000

Legal Debt Margin

$

(64)

33,749,592

CURRENT INSURANCE COVERAGE
(UNAUDITED)

(65)

DECLARATIONS
THE FOLLOWING INSURING CLAUSES ARE SUBJECT TO AN EACH AND EVERY CLAIM
LIMIT
INSURING CLAUSE 1: CYBER INCIDENT RESPONSE
SECTION A: INCIDENT RESPONSE COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD0

each and every claim

SECTION B: LEGAL AND REGULATORY COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION C: IT SECURITY AND FORENSIC COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION D: CRISIS COMMUNICATION COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION E: PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION F: THIRD PARTY PRIVACY BREACH MANAGEMENT COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION G: POST BREACH REMEDIATION COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD50,000

each and every claim, subject to a
maximum of 10% of all sums we have
paid as a direct result of the cyber event

Deductible:

USD0

each and every claim

Unique Market Reference No. B087520C9N5047
©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 2: CYBER CRIME
SECTION A: FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION B: THEFT OF FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION C: THEFT OF PERSONAL FUNDS
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION D: EXTORTION

SECTION E: CORPORATE IDENTITY THEFT
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION F: TELEPHONE HACKING
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION G: PUSH PAYMENT FRAUD
Limit of liability:

USD50,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION H: UNAUTHORIZED USE OF COMPUTER RESOURCES
Limit of liability:

USD250,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

Unique Market Reference No. B087520C9N5047
©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 3: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
SECTION A: SYSTEM DAMAGE AND RECTIFICATION COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION B: INCOME LOSS AND EXTRA EXPENSE
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim, sub-limited to
USD1,000,000 in respect of system failure

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION C: ADDITIONAL EXTRA EXPENSE
Limit of liability:

USD100,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION D: DEPENDENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim, sub-limited to
USD1,000,000 in respect of system failure

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION E: CONSEQUENTIAL REPUTATIONAL HARM
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

SECTION F: CLAIM PREPARATION COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD25,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD0

each and every claim

SECTION G: HARDWARE REPLACEMENT COSTS
Limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

each and every claim

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim

Unique Market Reference No. B087520C9N5047
©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

THE FOLLOWING INSURING CLAUSES ARE SUBJECT TO AN AGGREGATE LIMIT
INSURING CLAUSE 4: NETWORK SECURITY & PRIVACY LIABILITY
SECTION A: NETWORK SECURITY LIABILITY
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

SECTION B: PRIVACY LIABILITY
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

SECTION C: MANAGEMENT LIABILITY
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

SECTION D: REGULATORY FINES
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

SECTION E: PCI FINES, PENALTIES AND ASSESSMENTS
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

INSURING CLAUSE 5: MEDIA LIABILITY
SECTION A: DEFAMATION
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

SECTION B: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS INFRINGEMENT
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD1,000,000

in the aggregate, including costs and
expenses

Deductible:

USD10,000

each and every claim, including costs
and expenses

INSURING CLAUSE 6: TECHNOLOGY ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
NO COVER GIVEN

Unique Market Reference No. B087520C9N5047
©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

INSURING CLAUSE 7: COURT ATTENDANCE COSTS
Aggregate limit of liability:

USD100,000

in the aggregate

Deductible:

USD0

each and every claim

Unique Market Reference No. B087520C9N5047
©2019 CFC Underwriting Ltd, All Rights Reserved

UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 1 — ALL FUNDS SUMMARY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Education
Fund
FUND BALANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR

$

REVENUES
Local Tax Revenue
Corporate Replacement Tax
ICCB Grants
All Other State Revenue
Federal Revenue
Student Tuition and Fees
On-Behalf CIP
On-Behalf SURS
All Other Revenue
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Public Services
Auxiliary Services
Operations and Maintenance
Institutional Support
Scholarships, Student
Grants, and Waivers
Total Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Operating Transfers
FUND BALANCE END OF YEAR

$

11,369,981

Operations
and
Maintenance
Fund
$

85,777

Operations
and
Maintenance
Restricted
Fund
$

2,197,393

Debt
Service
Fund
$

197,838

Restricted
Purposes
Fund
$

Working
Cash
Fund

Liability,
Protection,
and
Settlement
Fund

Audit
Fund

66,384

$ 8,484,096

$

Auxiliary
Enterprise
Activities

99,471

$ 3,651,897

$

70,333

Total
$

26,223,170

3,738,222
678,848
7,694,821
2,435
1,097,288
10,719,586
152,155
24,083,355

1,297,926
80,055
1,377,981

865,284
258,218
1,123,502

2,332,809
137,261
450
2,470,520

306,917
462,475
6,951,947
70,645
11,102,717
1,750
18,896,451

-

60,328
83
60,411

1,807,704
24,605
1,832,309

149,047
9,793
1,152,053
1,310,893

10,102,273
678,848
8,001,738
464,910
8,198,282
10,866,640
70,645
11,102,717
1,669,369
51,155,422

9,812,322
2,558,821
1,202,523
18,402
2,903,599

2,367,739
-

1,121,857
-

2,552,640

6,507,484
1,053,751
1,594,365
11,058
551,405
1,015,250
2,470,716

-

57,650

11,885
657,218
1,441,259

2,266,548
-

16,319,806
3,624,457
2,796,888
29,460
2,817,953
5,162,064
9,425,864

4,298,339
20,794,006

2,367,739

1,121,857

2,552,640

5,692,423
18,896,452

-

57,650

18,251
2,128,613

2,266,548

10,009,013
50,185,505

(1,970,006)

1,000,006

-

50,000

-

-

-

-

920,000

-

66,383

$ 8,484,096

102,232

$ 3,355,593

12,689,324

$

96,025

$

2,199,038

$

165,718

(75)

$

$

$

34,678

$

27,193,087

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 2 —
SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS AND FIXED DEBT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

FIXED ASSETS
Sites and Improvements
Buildings, Additions, and Improvements
Equipment
Other Fixed Assets
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Net Fixed Assets

Balance
June 30, 2020

Additions/
Reclassifications

Deletions/
Reclassifications

Balance
June 30, 2021

$

$

$

$

5,200,797
73,448,131
6,341,901
708,289
85,699,118
(31,646,722)

885,655
416,407
938,147
2,240,209
(2,330,414)

(350,285)
(350,285)
-

5,200,797
74,333,786
6,758,308
1,296,151
87,589,042
(33,977,136)

$ 54,052,396

$

(90,205)

$

(350,285)

$ 53,611,906

FIXED DEBT
Bonds Payable
OPEB Liability
Other Fixed Liabilities

$ 21,088,000
13,488,143
1,180,488

$

150,628
112,900

$

(1,795,000)
(195,048)

$ 19,293,000
13,638,771
1,098,340

Total Fixed Debt

$ 35,756,631

$

263,528

$

(1,990,048)

$ 34,030,111

(76)

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 3 — OPERATING PURPOSES FUNDS
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Operations
and
Maintenance
Fund

Education
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCE
Local Government:
Property Taxes
Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax
Total Local Government

$

3,738,222
678,848
4,417,070

$

Total
Operating
Funds

1,297,926
1,297,926

$

5,036,148
678,848
5,714,996

State Government:
ICCB Base Operating Grants
ICCB Equalization Grants
ICCB Career & Technical Education
ICCB Performance Grant
Other ICCB Grants Not Listed Above
Department of Corrections
Total State Government

2,586,315
4,687,870
350,915
69,721
2,435
7,697,256

-

2,586,315
4,687,870
350,915
69,721
2,435
7,697,256

Federal Government

1,097,288

-

1,097,288

9,072,985
1,635,152
11,449
10,719,586

-

9,072,985
1,635,152
11,449
10,719,586

Student Tuition and Fees:
Tuition
Fees
Other Student Assessments
Total Student Tuition and Fees
Other Sources:
Sales and Service Fees
Facilities Revenue
Investment Income
Other
Total Other Sources

76,104
19,224
22,676
34,151
152,155

Total Operating Revenues
Nonoperating Item
Loan Proceeds
Adjusted Revenue

76,104
92,427
22,355
41,324
232,210

24,083,355

1,377,981

25,461,336

-

-

-

1,377,981

$ 25,461,336

$ 24,083,355

(77)

73,203
(321)
7,173
80,055

$

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 3 — OPERATING PURPOSES FUNDS
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Education
Fund
OPERATING EXPENDITURES
By Program:
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Public Services
Operations and Maintenance
Institutional Support
Scholarships, Student Grants, and Waivers
Total Expenditures by Program

$

Operating Transfers Out

9,812,322
2,558,821
1,202,523
18,402
2,903,599
4,298,339
20,794,006

Operations
and
Maintenance
Fund

$

1,970,006

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out
By Object:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Contractual Services
General Materials and Supplies
Conference and Meeting Expenses
Fixed Charges
Utilities
Capital Outlay
Scholarships, Student Grants, and Waivers
Total Expenditures by Object
Operating Transfers Out

(1,000,006)

9,812,322
2,558,821
1,202,523
18,402
2,367,739
2,903,599
4,298,339
23,161,745
970,000

$

1,367,733

$ 24,131,745

$ 12,008,524
2,421,559
1,176,454
591,877
56,909
60,004
54,688
125,652
4,298,339
20,794,006

$

749,280
265,840
243,779
155,559
667
6,122
826,246
120,246
2,367,739

$ 12,757,804
2,687,399
1,420,233
747,436
57,576
66,126
880,934
245,898
4,298,339
23,161,745

$ 22,764,012
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$

$ 22,764,012

1,970,006

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out

2,367,739
2,367,739

Total
Operating
Funds

(1,000,006)
$

1,367,733

970,000
$ 24,131,745

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 4 —
RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND REVENUES BY SOURCES
State Government:
ICCB - Adult Ed
ICCB - Other
Department of Corrections
CIP On-Behalf Payments
SURS On-Behalf Payments
Other
Total State Government

$

Federal Government:
Department of Education
Other
Total Federal Government

196,722
110,195
277,169
70,645
11,102,717
185,306
11,942,754

4,289,916
2,662,031
6,951,947

Other Sources

1,750

Total Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues by Sources
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$

18,896,451

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 4 —
RESTRICTED PURPOSES FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

EXPENDITURES
By Program:
Instruction
Academic Support
Student Services
Public Services
Auxiliary Services
Operations and Maintenance
Institutional Support
Scholarships, Student Grants, and Waivers
Total Expenditures by Program

$

$

By Object:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Contractual Services
Student Financial Aid
General Materials and Supplies
Travel and Conference/Meeting Expenses
Capital Outlay
Scholarships, Student Grants, and Waivers
Total Expenditures by Object

$

6,507,484
1,053,751
1,594,365
11,058
551,405
1,015,250
2,470,716
5,692,423
18,896,452

802,168
11,387,958
205,572
174,553
11,505
17,500
652,541
5,644,655
$ 18,896,452
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 5 —
CURRENT FUNDS — EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

INSTRUCTION
Instructional Programs
Other (Including SURS/CIP On-Behalf)
Total Instruction

$ 10,221,300
6,098,506
16,319,806

ACADEMIC SUPPORT
Academic Computing Support
Academic Administration and Planning
Other (Including SURS On-Behalf)
Total Academic Support

831,622
907,462
1,885,373
3,624,457

STUDENT SERVICES
Admissions and Records
Counseling and Career Services
Financial Aid Administration
Other (Including SURS On-Behalf)
Total Student Services

175,955
496,876
282,164
1,841,893
2,796,888

PUBLIC SERVICES
Customized Training (Instructional)
Other (Including SURS On-Behalf)
Total Public Services/Continuing Education

18,402
11,058
29,460

AUXILIARY SERVICES

2,817,953

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
Maintenance
Custodial Services
Grounds
Campus Security
Transportation
Utilities
Administration
Other (Including SURS On-Behalf)
Total Operations and Maintenance

417,604
579,912
198,160
460,425
20,483
879,252
369,923
1,114,448
4,040,207
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO. 5 —
CURRENT FUNDS — EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
Executive Management
Fiscal Operations
Community Relations
Administrative Support Services
Board of Trustees
General Institutional
Institutional Research
Administrative Data Processing
Other (Including SURS On-Behalf)
Total Institutional Support

$

10,009,013

SCHOLARSHIPS, STUDENT GRANTS, AND WAIVERS
Total Current Fund Expenditures

$

Note: Current funds include the Education; Operations and Maintenance; Restricted Purposes;
Audit; and Liability, Protection, and Settlement Funds; and Auxiliary Enterprises.
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578,480
835,542
50,384
1,635,548
20,973
409,051
301,537
831,622
2,210,087
6,873,224

46,511,008

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
RECONCILIATION OF THE UNIFORM FINANCIAL STATEMENT NO.1
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT)

Reconciliation of the Uniform Financial Statement #1 to the Statement of Net Position

Total fund balances - Uniform Financial Statement Number 1

$

27,193,087

Amounts reported in the basic financial statements for net position differ for the following reasons:
Capital assets used in College activities are not current financial resources, thus not
reported on the uniform financial statements.
added to Noncurrent Assets

53,611,906

Some of the College's liabilities reported in the statement of net position do not require the
use of current financial resources, and thus are not reported on the uniform financial
statements.
added to Current and Noncurrent Liabilities

(34,030,111)

OPEB amounts made subsequent to the OPEB liability measurement date are required to by
reported as deferred outflows and inflows on the statement of net position
added to Deferred Outflows - Other Post Employment Benefits
added to Deferred Outflows - Other Post Employment Benefits
added to Deferred Inflows - Other Post Employment Benefits

70,645
1,083,075
(3,734,505)

Operating Revenues must be reported net of a calculated scholarship allowance
in accordance with GASB standards
deducted from Student Tuition and Fees
deducted from Financial Aid and Scholarships

(5,582,669)
5,582,669

Pension payments related to federal grants and made subsequent to the pension liability
measurement date are required to be reported as deferred outflows on the statement
of net position.
added to Deferred Grant Related Pension Contributions and deducted
from Benefit Expense

Net Position per the Statement of Net Position

64,568

$
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44,258,665

ILLINOIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD
STATE GRANTS SECTION

(84)

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY
LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Centralia, Illinois
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Adult Education and Family Literacy
Grants Program of Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the District), which comprise the
statement of net position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in net position for the year then ended, and the related note to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the grant policy guidelines of the Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management
Manual. Those standards and guidelines require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details.
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Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants Program of Kaskaskia Community
College District #501 as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Emphasis of Matter
The financial statements of the Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants are intended to present the
net position and changes in net position of only that portion of the business-type activities of Kaskaskia
Community College District #501 that is attributable to the Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants
Program. These financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the statement of net
position of Kaskaskia Community College District #501 as of June 30, 2021, or the revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants Program’s basic financial
statements. The supplementary schedule on page 91 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Peoria, Illinois
November 17, 2021
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Centralia, Illinois
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the financial statements of the Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants Program of
Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the District), which comprise the statement of net position
as of June 30, 2021, and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in net position
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the state grants financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated November 17, 2021.
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Kaskaskia
Community College District #501 failed to comply with the terms or conditions of the grant policy
guidelines of the Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management Manual, insofar as they relate
to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of
such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have
come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the above-referenced terms or
conditions of the grant policy guidelines of the Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management
Manual, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of trustees and management of
Kaskaskia Community College District #501 and the Illinois Community College Board and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Peoria, Illinois
November 17, 2021

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM —
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

State
Basic

Performance

Total

ASSETS

$

-

$

-

$

-

LIABILITIES

$

-

$

-

$

-

NET POSITION

$

-

$

-

$

-

See accompanying Notes to ICCB State Grant Financial Statements.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM —
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

State
Basic
REVENUES
State Sources

$

EXPENDITURES
By Program:
Instruction
Social Work Services
Guidance Services
Assessment and Testing
Total Expenditures by Program

Performance

103,145

$

Total

26,920

$

130,065

48,437
11,712
12,853
11,784
84,786

2,294
1,903
2,538
6,735

48,437
14,006
14,756
14,322
91,521

9,893
578
7,888
18,359

17,918
193
2,074
20,185

27,811
771
9,962
38,544

103,145

26,920

130,065

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

-

-

-

Net Position - Beginning of Year

-

-

-

Program Support:
General Administration
Workforce Coordination
Data and Information Services
Total Program Support
Total Expenditures

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to ICCB State Grant Financial Statements.
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-

$

-

$

-

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
NOTES TO ICCB STATE GRANT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1

ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANT PROGRAMS
State Basic Grant. Grant is awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to
establish special classes for the instruction of persons of age 21 and over or persons under
the age of 21 and not otherwise in attendance in public school, for the purpose of providing
adults in the community other instruction as may be necessary to increase their
qualifications for employment or other means of self-support and their ability to meet their
responsibilities as citizens including courses of instruction regularly accepted for graduation
from elementary or high schools, and for Americanization and general education
development review classes. Included in this grant are funds for support services, such as
student transportation and childcare facilities or provision.
Performance Grant. Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers based
on performance outcomes.

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the ICCB Adult
Education and Family Literacy Grants. These transactions have been accounted for in the
Restricted Purposes Fund.
Basis of Accounting
The statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
ADULT EDUCATION AND FAMILY LITERACY GRANTS PROGRAM
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Expenditures of
ICCB Grant
Funds Only
STATE BASIC
Instruction (45% Minimum Required)
General Administration (15% Maximum Allowed)

$
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48,437
9,893

Percentage of
ICCB Grant
Funds Only
46.96%
9.59%

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
DOCUMENTATION OF RESIDENCY VERIFICATION STEPS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Tuition is charged on the basis of residency classification as defined below:
The Kaskaskia College Board of Trustees has established a policy on residence which authorizes
the administration to implement guidelines, consistent with existing law, for classifying students as
Illinois In-District, Illinois Out-of-District, Out-of-State, and International. This policy considers
residence to be that permanent domicile established for a purpose independent of attendance at a
school as a student.
The word residence is generally interpreted to have no fixed meaning in the law, but may have a
variety of meanings dependent on the context with which it is employed. The courts have generally
held that, unless defined by Statute, an administrative body can define the term residence.
The Kaskaskia College guidelines for determining residency are delineated in the paragraphs which
follow:
1. Tuition rates for Kaskaskia College are established by the Board of Trustees and vary
according to the residence of the student. Residence is considered to be that permanent
domicile established for a purpose independent of attendance as a student. The assessment of
tuition and fees for any given semester is based on the residence classification of the student
as of the first day of classes for that semester. Each student is required to pay the appropriate
fees according to his/her classification.
2. Residency is determined according to the circumstances that exist at the time the application is
filed for admission to the College. An applicant may be required to submit additional
documented information to support the residence declaration given by the student on the
application.
3. For the purpose of this policy, marriage is regarded as effecting emancipation of minors,
whether male or female.
4. The initial classification of a student will remain in effect for all subsequent semesters unless
such classification is changed by the Office of Admissions and Records.
A student may enter a request with the Coordinator of Student Records for a change in
residency status. The Coordinator of Student Records will determine the appropriateness of the
request. Unresolved problems shall be referred to the Vice President of Student Services.
Four factors which are primary and essential among the elements in determining a change of residence
are:
1. Physical abandonment of the previous permanent residence.
2. Intention not to return to previous residence.
3. Physical presence in the new permanent residence for which admission is sought.
4. Intent to make that location a new permanent residence.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
DOCUMENTATION OF RESIDENCY VERIFICATION STEPS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

State guidelines indicate that to qualify as an Illinois Resident Student for state funding purposes in an
Illinois public community college, the student must meet one of the following two requirements:
1. If unemancipated, at least one parent, stepparent, or court appointed guardian of the student
must be a legal resident in Illinois.
2. If emancipated, be a legal resident of the state of Illinois and have lived in Illinois in some
capacity other than as a student at a post-secondary education institution or a resident of a
state or federal correctional institution for a period of at least thirty (30) days prior to enrolling at
the community college, unless evidence is presented that the student has permanently
relocated for purposes other than attending school.
Evidence of legal residency must be based on actual residency in Illinois and at least one of the
following:
1. Ownership and/or occupancy of a home in the state of Illinois.
2. An Illinois driver’s license.
3. Illinois automobile license registration.
4. An Illinois voter’s registration card.
5. Employment in the state of Illinois.
6. Payment of Illinois income taxes.
7. A document pertaining to the student’s past on existing status as an Illinois student (i.e., high
school record).
8. Other non-self-serving documentation.
Kaskaskia College has established the following classifications of permanent residence for the purpose
of attendance as a Kaskaskia College student:
1. Illinois in-district student: An Illinois resident student as defined above, whose permanent
domicile is within the boundaries of Community College District #501, thirty (30) days prior to
enrollment, for a purpose independent of attendance as a student. A resident of a state or
federal correctional institution shall not be classified as a resident of the District.
2. Illinois out-of-district student: An Illinois resident student as defined above, whose permanent
domicile is established outside of Community College District #501 and within the state of
Illinois.
3. Out-of-state student: A student whose permanent domicile is within the United States or its
territories, but who does not qualify as an Illinois resident student.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
DOCUMENTATION OF RESIDENCY VERIFICATION STEPS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

4. International student: A student whose permanent domicile is established outside of the United
States and its territories, who holds a current passport, a valid 1-94, and an F-1 student visa as
a result of receiving an 1-20 form issued by Kaskaskia College. International students who hold
a permanent residence visa or become a naturalized citizen may qualify for appropriate
residency status and will be considered on an individual basis.
Appeal for Status Review
1. The classification or reclassification of any student for tuition purposes may, upon written
request of the student, be appealed. The written appeal must be filed with the Coordinator of
Student Records within thirty (30) days after the student is notified of the original classification,
and must include reasons for the appeal and a complete statement of the facts upon which the
appeal is based. All supporting documents, affidavits, or other evidence should be attached to
the written appeal. Failure to file such an appeal within the specified time limit shall constitute a
waiver to all claims of reconsideration for that semester. The appeal may then be filed for any
subsequent semester.
2. Consistent with the general intent and purpose of these regulations, the committee may uphold
or reverse the decision of the classifying official. The decision of the committee in all cases
shall be binding on the College and the student. Unresolved problems shall be referred to the
Dean of Enrollment Services.
Interpretative Guidelines
Unemancipated Dependent Student or Spouse
1. An unemancipated, dependent student, or dependent spouse may qualify for Illinois In-District
classification without meeting the thirty (30) day requirement if his/her presence in the District
results from the establishment by parent, guardian, or spouse of their permanent residence in
the District provided that such domicile was established for reasons other than to allow the
student to gain Illinois In-District classification.
2. In the case of divorce or separation of the parents, the student shall qualify if either parent
meets the requirements.
3. Temporary transfer of parent or guardian:
a. Dependents of persons who have maintained their permanent residence in the College
District for at least six months immediately prior to a temporary transfer by their employer to
a location outside the District shall be eligible for Illinois In-District classification provided
they enroll in the College within two years from the time of the transfer.
b. Said persons must have maintained their permanent residence in the District by means of a
continuous voting record in the District, filing State income tax returns, and/or other
appropriate actions.
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KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
DOCUMENTATION OF RESIDENCY VERIFICATION STEPS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Military Personnel
1. Illinois In-District tuition and fee rates will be allowed to all military personnel and their
dependents who are citizens of the United States while they are stationed and present in the
College District in connection with that service.
2. Military personnel who are subsequently assigned to temporary duty outside the College
District shall continue to qualify as Illinois In-District for tuition and fee classification. In
instances when military personnel are transferred to another location, this special arrangement
to pay Illinois In-District rates shall terminate for them and their dependents at the end of the
semester in which the student is enrolled.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE SECTION
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501
Centralia, Illinois
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of Kaskaskia Community College District #501 (the District) and its discretely presented
component unit, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 17, 2021. Our report includes a reference to another auditor who
audited the component unit of the District, as prescribed in our report on the District’s financial
statements. The financial statements of the District’s discretely presented component unit were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report does not
include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance
associated with the Kaskaskia College Foundation.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details.

(97)

Board of Trustees
Kaskaskia Community College District #501

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Peoria, Illinois
November 17, 2021

(98)

KASKASKIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #501
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Financial Statement Findings
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.
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